
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Wednesday, 3 March 2021.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 

 
 

Thursday, 11 March 2021 at 1.00 pm 
Virtual meeting - This meeting is being held remotely using 

Skype for Business 
 

 
Committee 
Members: 

 
Councillor Ray Wootten (Chairman) 
Councillor Sarah Trotter (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Mike Exton, Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown, Councillor Philip 
Knowles, Councillor Amanda Wheeler and Councillor Linda Wootten 

 
 

 
Invited 
Cabinet 

Members 

 
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the Council 
Councillor Barry Dobson, the Deputy Leader of the Council  
Councillor Annie Mason, the Cabinet Member for Communities 
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations  
Councillor Robert Reid, the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, the Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy 
 

 

Agenda 

 Virtual Meeting - Joining Arrangements 
Councillors should access the meeting using the link in their calendar. 

 
Members of the press and public can gain access to the meeting by using the following link: 

 
Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 11 March 2021 

Rural and 

Communities 

Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 
 

https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/6LKH0B91


 

 

 
If you are using a smartphone or tablet it may be necessary to download the Skype for Business app 
before you can enter the meeting; please allow yourself time to do this. If you are using a laptop or 

desktop computer, you should be able to access the meeting via your web browser. 
 

When you follow the link to the meeting you will enter a virtual lobby; you will be invited into the 
meeting from the lobby just before the meeting begins. Members of the public should not use the 
Chat function in Skype for Business. This is for use by Councillors, who will use it to indicate that 

they would like to speak. 
 

If you have any questions about how to join the meeting, please e-mail 
democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk. 

 
1.   Comments from Members of the Public 

To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion. 

 

   
2.   Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence  

   
3.   Crime and Disorder - Neighbourhood Policing / Anti-Social Behaviour 

Annual item. Members to receive a presentation from the Safer Together Co-
ordinator of the North and South Kesteven Police and Crime Commissioner 
office and from local representatives of the Community Police. 

 

   
4.   Disclosure of Interests 

Members are asked to disclose any interest in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 

 

   
5.   Action Notes from the meeting held on 7 January 2021 (Pages 5 - 11) 

   
6.   Updates from the previous meeting 

To note the status of actions raised at the previous meeting. 
(Page 13) 

   
7.   Verbal Update from Cabinet Members 

To receive a verbal update from the Cabinet Member for Communities and the 
Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning.  

 

   
8.   Safeguarding Review 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Communities, providing an update on the 
progress made in reviewing the Council’s safeguarding practices. 

(Pages 15 - 23) 

   
9.   Modern Slavery Charter 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Communities on the Safer Lincolnshire 
Partnership’s Modern Slavery Charter. 

(Pages 25 - 31) 

   
10.   Mental Health Challenge - South Kesteven 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Communities, providing an update on activity 
from the working group and setting out a proposed motion to Full Council that 
would commit the authority to the Local Authority Mental Health Challenge. 

(Pages 33 - 39) 

   
11.   Regulatory Non-compliance Notice 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning, covering the actions 
and impacts of the regulatory findings in respect of publication of non-
compliance notice by the Social Housing Regulator. 

(Pages 41 - 49) 

   
12.   Work Programme 

The Committee to note upcoming items on its work programme. 
(Pages 51 - 53) 

  
 

 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 

 Exempt Item 
The press and public may be excluded from the meeting during the following item of business, on 
the grounds that if they were to be present, exempt information could be disclosed to them as 
defined in paragraphs 3 and 5 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). 
 
Paragraphs 3 and 5 of the Act refer to information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding the information) and information in respect of which 
a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 

13.   Rent Guarantee Scheme 
Report of the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning, on an insurance 
scheme for guaranteed rent and property damage liability for private rented 
sector landlords. 

(Pages 55 - 67) 

   
14.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

   



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Meeting of the 
Rural and Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Thursday, 7 January 2021, 2.00 pm 

 

 

 

Meeting held virtually, via Skype 
 

 
Committee Members present 
  
Councillor Mike Exton 
Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Sarah Trotter (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Amanda Wheeler 
Councillor Linda Wootten 
Councillor Ray Wootten (Chairman) 
 

Cabinet Members 
 
Councillor Annie Mason, the Cabinet Member for Communities 
Councillor Robert Reid, the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, the Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy 
 
Officers Other Members present 
 
Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 
Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and 
Governance 
Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive 
Chris Stratford, Interim Assistant Director 
of Housing 
Richard Wyles, Interim Director of 
Finance, Section 151 Officer 
Paul Crow, Interim Head of Technical 
Services 
Carol Drury, Senior Community 
Development Officer 
Naomi Page, Democratic Officer 
Susan Hislop, Democratic Officer 

Councillor Annie Mason 
Councillor Adam Stokes 
Councillor Bob Adams 
Councillor Penny Milnes 
Councillor Jacky Smith 

 

 

5

Agenda Item 5



 
 

85. Comments from Members of the Public 
 
A member of the public addressed the Committee to her experiences of 
witnessing racial prejudice as a mother of non-white children. She spoke in 
support of the resolution made at Council to tackle inequality and racial 
discrimination, praising the initiative while highlighting her own personal 
experiences; explaining these as being mainly a consequence to lack of 
awareness through unintended racism.  

 
The Chairman thanked her for speaking to the committee and in statement 
welcomed others to join him in “condemning racism in any form, that those 
who show prejudice or discrimination against other people because they are 
from a different background is wrong, there is no justification for racial 
discrimination and I would encourage any form of race or hate crime be 
reported to the Police and hope they do so and more are reported.” 
 

86. Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence 
 
Following a register of attendance all Members were confirmed as present. 
 

87. Disclosure of Interest 
 
No interests were disclosed. 
 
The Chairman notified the Committee that he had received a request to 
present item 7, the Anti-Racism Report at this point of the meeting. A change 
of the order of proceedings to that shown in the agenda was then proposed 
and agreed.  
 

88. Anti-Racism Report 
 
The Senior Community Development Officer presented to members the Anti-
Racism Action Planning Report which she explained emanated from a Motion 
put to Council in October 2020 that had received full agreement by all 
Councillors.  
 
An Equalities Charter was to be developed to engage with businesses and 
organisations across South Kesteven who would be encouraged to sign up to 
the Charter. Once agreed, the equality objectives alongside the agreed 
actions would be included within the Council’s Annual Position Statement and 
Corporate Plan.  
 
A ‘champion’ was to be identified within each service area with training 
provided. It was recognised that Covid-19 would impact on the timescale to 
deliver these plans. Further discussion was being undertaken to identify how 
the Council could encourage the reporting of hate crime.  
 

6



 
 

Members discussed and noted: 

 Inclusion within the report of unconscious bias 

 A need for zero tolerance by the Police 

 Importance of education and training 

 Request for training to be compulsory  
 
The mover of the original Anti-Racism Motion, Councillor Amanda Wheeler, 
requested it be recorded her appreciation to all Councillors for their full 
support of the Motion. 
 
Members then voted to agree the recommendations outlined within the report: 
 

To recommend the Anti-Racism Action Plan to the Cabinet Member for 
Communities and agrees that the actions be reported as part of the 
monitoring process for the Council’s Equality Objectives. 

 
89. Action Notes from the meeting held on 12 November 2020 

 
The Action Notes from the meeting held on 12 November 2020, were agreed 
as a correct record. 
 

90. Updates from the previous meeting 
 
Updates from the previous meeting were noted. 
 

91. Verbal Update from Cabinet Members 
 
A verbal update was presented by the Cabinet Member for Communities. She 
reported that: 
 

 A new variant of Covid-19 had caused significant changes including 
national lockdown 

 A further 27,371 positive tests were reported in Lincolnshire (an 
increase of 2,435 on the previous week) with 1,066 deaths. These 
figures continued to be significantly below national average though 
South Kesteven was high 

 Lincolnshire County Council continue to provide support to the clinically 
extreme vulnerable 

 The SK Community Hub continues to provide support, opening 5 days 
a week with facility for 7 days dependant on demand and continued 
work with local groups and organisations 

 Vaccination sites were operational at the Grantham Meres Leisure 
Centre and GP Surgeries across the District 

 Mobile testing units were available every 10 days at Grantham and 
Stamford with a walk-in test facility at Queen Elizabeth Park in 
Grantham 

7



 
 

 The Communications Team continued high activity to get messaging to 
residents 

 Business grants of over £30million had been distributed to over 2,000 
local businesses by InvestSK Ltd 

 Prohibition notices for breaches during Covid-19 had been served 
against 6 businesses with 1 fixed penalty notice 

 729 covid-19 complaints had been dealt with and 3,024 visits to 
businesses by Covid Champions had been undertaken since 
September 2020 to provide advice and signposting 

 Out of 50 enquiries to the Community Fund 8 had been received with 1 
deferred and a further 1 refused.  

 The Mental Health Working Party had been established. A Mental 
Health Champion was to be appointed to define focus, scope and 
objectives to then be returned to the Scrutiny Committee prior to being 
presented to Council. 

 
In response to concerns expressed by a Member over clinically extremely 
vulnerable lists and possible disparity, the Assistant Chief Executive clarified 
that this data was held by Lincolnshire County Council. A data sharing 
agreement is in place that enables the Council were able to raise any 
concerns.  
 
The Chairman requested feedback post-Covid from the Cabinet Member for 
Communities to the running and support provided by the SK Community Hub. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning provided the following update: 
 

 Homeless Partnerships were working hard, and cold weather payments 
were being processed for homeless people  

 No update to the Local Plan was presented due to progress to review 
being awaited 

 External planning review – The management structure had changed 
with a new Interim Head of Development of Planning and Policy 
appointed. Work was ongoing on the findings to present to Committee 

 Disability Facility Grant was on Quarter 3 with national Government 
funding having been awarded of £115,742 with £578 spent to date; any 
underspend could be carried forward. The following works had been 
undertaken: 22 stair lifts; 23 level access showers; 1 garage 
conversion; 19 ramps; 5 heating installations and 12 various 
improvements on behalf of residents 

 Priority was given to emergency housing repairs. Contractors were able 
to continue repairs during lockdown, provided notice was provided to 
residents and with no human contact. Work on Manor Court in Bourne 
for a new heating system was in consultation at time of the report and 
the same was to follow at Windsor 

 Restructure of housing repairs and improvements was progressing 

 Garden maintenance was progressing to be in place for April 2021 

8



 
 

 
In response to questions, the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
confirmed that the Disabled Facilities Grant was means tested for those over 
18 years. Apart from a minor issue with heating replacement/repairs over the 
Christmas period, residents who had requested for work to be suspended until 
after Christmas was supported with completion to upgrades on water systems 
envisaged to complete by the end of January 2021. Those residents impacted 
were to receive credit to their accounts. 
 
Progress had been made on setting up a Residents’ Working Group to cover 
the whole district however the impact from Covid-19 had resulted in some 
delay with the first meeting envisaged for April 2021. Four individuals 
volunteered; one person in each of Deepings, Stamford and Grantham and 
one other. 
 

92. Review of Voids 
 
In presenting the report, the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
warned of concerns over the process for health and safety and compliance 
issues due to performance and length of time for voids. He reported that new 
measurements were now in place towards addressing issues that had been 
identified; these included structure change to improve efficiency and 
effectiveness as well as avoidance of silo practice as well as a new KPI 
reporting process using green, amber and red flags.   
 
A fully revised Voids Policy would be sent for approval to full Council and, 
once set up, continue to be presented every three years. 
 
Members raised a number of questions and concerns that included: 
 

 Delays to keys being returned by vacating tenants. The Interim Head of 
Technical Services explained that keys not placed in the key safe on 
the day of vacancy were pursued. The Interim Assistant Director of 
Housing also explained that where damage to property was proven by 
the occupant then the tenant was liable to the cost associated with the 
repair. Random inspections of homes had been introduced however 
most tenants were dealt with on need due to resource issues 

 While stressing the importance of ‘getting it right first time’, where other 
items could be identified during a repair and could be adequately 
corrected /repaired, a tradesman, having reported back to the office, 
could complete the works required. A culture change away from ‘not 
doing any more than the assigned job’ was progressing through future 
structural changes and services 

 Following evaluation of available systems, it had been concluded that 
Northgate was the favoured software provider 

 Quality of works had been identified as a consequence of lack of 
project management that through improved monitoring of KPI’s, would 
be resolved in future. All operations were to move ‘under one roof’ for a 

9



 
 

more integrated approach. Once in place, the KPI’s would be provided 
to the Scrutiny Committee 

 Improvements to the stock management system would result in savings 

 A request to consider improved communication of the scrutiny 
committees 

 
In response to a question by a guest Councillor, the Interim Assistant Director 
of Housing outlined that future training had been considered to meet 
compliance requirements as well as to update skills, including traditional 
apprenticeships.   
 
It was confirmed that typographical errors identified within the report would be 
amended. 
 
The Chief Executive confirmed that scrutiny committees should have been 
made aware of performance which through the new Corporate Plan and 
associated KPI’s, each scrutiny committee had been assigned management of 
their respective area. A housing dashboard was required as well as a staff 
appraisal system. In response to questions by Members she advised: 
 

 A review of scrutiny had been agreed at the Council meeting held on 17 
December 2020. The Local Governance Association had advised that 
due to consequences of the pandemic no reviews would take place 
until the summer of this year.  

 A new policy on voids was to be drafted and would be considered by 
this committee prior to adoption by the Council. This would be reviewed 
every 2-3 years. 

 Digital feedback to quality of services to feed into the appraisal system 
and management process was being investigated. 

 
Members then voted to agree the recommendations and to Option 2 as 
outlined within the report: 
 
1. Recommends that the Committee notes the report and particularly the 

potential operational and financial benefits identified in the report by 
adopting the changes being proposed. 

2. Supports the initial steps proposed to improve performance and the further 
work needed to achieve a final revised policy proposal was critical to the 
overall process. 

3. Reports its views and comments on these proposals to Cabinet on 12 
January 
2021. 

4. Receives, at its next meeting, a proposed performance dashboard of key 
performance indicators. 

5. Supports option 2 as detailed on page 14 of the Voids Report namely: 
•  Streamlined voids process to reduce overall period and reduced rent 

loss. 

10



 
 

•  Introduction of key safe facilities at void properties to reduce days lost 
for key returns. 

•  Tighter Contract and Project Management of external contractor 
activities. 

•  Virtual inspection process to improve inspection regime leading up to re 
let. 

•  Merging of Major and Minor voids team under single management post. 
•  Better van stock process to reduce lost time collecting materials. 
•  Early review of current voids standard for consideration by members. 
•  Reduced costs associated with voids through tighter specification 

control. 
 
ACTION 1 
 

 To add to the committee work programme to receive a proposed 
performance dashboard of key performance indicators at their meeting 
on 11 March 2021. 

 
93. Future Work Programme 

 
Members were requested to email the Chairman with any additional items for 
consideration within the future work programme. 
 
An update to the Riverside Health and Safety Compliance Report was 
provided by the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning that it was now 
anticipated to be received in April 2021.  
 
ACTION 2 
 

 That the Health and Safety Report update scheduled for 11 March 
2021 to now be presented to the Committee on 29 April 2021  

 
94. Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent 
 
None had been received. 
 
Meeting ended 15:50 
 
 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
– 2020/2021 

Actions from meeting held 7 January 2021  
 

 Task Assigned to Deadline Noted by Progress/Comments 

7 January 2021 

92 Review of Voids 

To add to the committee 
work programme to 
receive a proposed 
performance dashboard 
of key performance 
indicators on 11 March 
2021. 

Democracy 
Services 

29 
January 

2021 

Susan 
Hislop 

Added to the Work Programme for meeting to be held on 
11 March 2021 

93 93. Future Work Programme 
 The Health and Safety 

Report update scheduled 
for 11 March 2021 to 
move to 29 April 2021 

Democracy 
Services 

29 
January 

2021 

Susan 
Hislop 

Added to the Work Programme for meeting to be held on 
29 April 2021 

 

13

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Rural and Communities Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 

11 March 2021 

Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 

  Cabinet Member for Communities 

         
  

 

Safeguarding Review  

The Children Act 2004 and the Care Act 2014 place responsibilities on the Council to safeguard 
vulnerable people from harm. The Authority is currently undertaking a review of its safeguarding 
practices to ensure they remain fit for purpose.  This report provides an update on progress. 

 

Report Author 

Carol Drury, Community Engagement and Policy Development Officer 

 
 01476 406 161 

  c.drury@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Paul Stokes, Head of Corporate Operations 5 January 2021 

Approved by: Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive 8 February 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Annie Mason, Cabinet Member for 
Communities  

11 February 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Members of Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee are asked 
to note the contents of this report and offer comment. 

 

 

15

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

  

1.1 Safeguarding requires the commitment of the Council as a whole if we are to help to protect 

children, young people and vulnerable adults from harm. Safeguarding is everyone’s 

business and we must ensure that elected members and staff from all our service areas, 

particularly the community-focused services, have access to support, are trained, are able 

to recognise signs of safety and, most importantly, act upon concerns.  

1.2 In October 2020 the Council identified a new Designated Lead for Safeguarding and, on 

taking responsibility, the Assistant Chief Executive instigated an internal review of the 

Council’s safeguarding practices. 

1.3 It was identified that, although the Council has excellent practices and robust policy and 

procedures in place, the majority of both corporate and operational actions fell to one 

member of staff (the Deputy Safeguarding Officer).  In essence, this created a single point 

of failure.  

1.4 Areas for improvement were identified with the review focusing on three key themes: 

  • Governance and Visibility 

• Tools and Training 

• Processes and Approach 

 

1.5 The golden thread linking each of these themes is the challenge to make safeguarding 

everyone’s responsibility.  By embedding improved understanding and awareness of the 

legal and moral responsibilities we are better able to help protect the vulnerable from harm.  

1.6 The purpose of this report is to update Members on the progress made to date and seek 

their views on further improvements. 

Governance and Visibility 

1.7 It is a requirement of Lincolnshire’s Safeguarding Children Partnership and Safeguarding 

Adult Board that the Authority has a Designated Lead for Safeguarding.  This person should 

be well known to staff and Members. This role has, historically, been within the remit of a 

senior officer within Housing Services.  The role has become somewhat titular over the 

years and the initial findings of the review determined that, whilst the designated lead should 

sit within the Corporate Management Team to ensure good governance and clear lines of 

accountability, the position should be held by a person who takes an active role in 

safeguarding and is a visible presence throughout the organisation. 

Process and Approach 

1.8 In support of the Designated Lead the review identified the need to increase the number of 

deputy safeguarding officers across the Authority. To this end a new deputy has been 

identified in our Housing Service who will be responsible for operational safeguarding for 

adults; the existing deputy will become responsible for the safeguarding of children and a 

new safeguarding champion has been identified to support colleagues at the Mowbeck site. 

1.9 Easy to follow flowcharts are being developed relating to referral pathways.  Although our 

responsibilities as a District Authority are, in essence, the same for both adults and children 

the thresholds for referrals are different and the levels of available support, particularly in 

relation to early help are significantly different for children and adults. These flowcharts will 

16



 

 
 

guide officers and elected Members, prior to making a referral, toward the most appropriate 

pathway for response. 

1.10 These changes will ensure all officers and Members have access to advice and support in 

relation to safeguarding. 

1.11 Safeguarding policy and practice are tested on a three-year cycle by means of self-

assessment/peer moderated audits coordinated by Lincolnshire’s Safeguarding Children 

Partnership and Safeguarding Adults Board.  The last audit focused on the safeguarding of 

adults (the Lincolnshire Assessment and Assurance Framework) and was completed in 

2019 with this Council achieving green (effective) status across all relevant categories. 

When this audit is next carried out in 2022 the intention is to secure blue (excelling) status 

and the Authority is putting in place the actions required to achieve this. 

1.12 The Section 11 Safeguarding Children Audit is currently underway.  This audit was delayed 

by the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Partnership in acknowledgement of the demands 

on partners responding to the Coronavirus pandemic. The audit, which is a statutory 

requirement under the Children Act is made up of two parts: self-assessment and peer 

moderation. The self-assessment element of this audit was completed by the end of 

February 2021 to meet the re-arranged timeframe and awaits moderation.  

1.13 The final report relating to the outcomes of the audit, compiled by the Children’s Partnership, 

will be published in July 2021. In its Section 11 audit in 2017 South Kesteven District Council 

was one of only two district council’s in Lincolnshire that was rated as having excellent 

services across all 10 of the assessment headings, achieving green status in all 34 

questions.   

1.14 Results of audits, numbers and types of referrals, progress in training etc are reported yearly 

by means of an annual report on Safeguarding which is prepared and presented at 

Governance and Audit Committee. 

Tools and Training 

1.15 There is currently no collective system in place across the Authority for the recording and 

sharing of safeguarding cases.  Individual case files are kept by responsible officers which 

has the potential for a lack of information sharing and creates limitations for a joined-up 

approach across teams. 

1.16 Housing and Neighbourhoods teams currently utilise a system called ECins which is a 

secure, GDPR compliant, case management system through which information can be 

stored and shared.  Officers have liaised with the operators of ECins to investigate the 

system’s suitability for logging and sharing safeguarding case information.  

1.17 This system is used for such purposes in other agencies and has proven to be an effective 

tool.  In utilising this system for safeguarding we can collate information relating to early 

intervention cases (additional support for families) through to protection cases.  The system 

will also allow the identification of themes (types of abuse, locations etc) and provide links 

to potentially associated cases (e.g. anti-social behaviour, noise complaints) to improve 

opportunities for contextual safeguarding within the district. 

1.18 Safeguarding training is available to all officers and elected Members via Lincolnshire’s 

Safeguarding Children Partnership and Safeguarding Adults Board.  The requirements for 

training are set out in the Council’s Safeguarding Policy.  Training requirements are 

17



 

 
 

determined by the level of direct involvement officers have with vulnerable individuals.  The 

training and development section of the Policy is attached at Appendix A for information. 

1.19 A register of completed Safeguarding training is maintained by the Deputy Safeguarding 

Officer for Children and officers are sent reminders when they are required to update their 

training.  These are both manual processes currently.  The review team is investigating the 

viability of building training requirements, reminders and a central record of completed 

training into the existing iTrent system to fully automate the process across all service areas 

with Heads of Service being responsible for ensuring all team members have up to date 

levels of training. 

1.20 At its meeting of 17th March 2020 Cabinet approved the introduction of mandatory 

safeguarding e-learning for elected Members to be completed across their term of office and 

to complement the in-house training provided during Member induction. This requirement 

has recently been shared with Members as part of their training and development 

programme which is organised and monitored by Member Services.  The review has 

highlighted the need for Member Services and safeguarding officers to work more 

collaboratively in relation to safeguarding training requirements.  

1.21 A new safeguarding newsletter is being developed to keep all staff and Members up to date 

of safeguarding requirements, legislation, audit outcomes and available training.  The 

newsletter is intended as a source of advice and information that will be disseminated to 

Members and Heads of Service by e mail. Managers responsible for staff without access to 

a computer will be required to provide hard copies to ensure messaging gets to everyone 

across the Authority. 

1.22 Officers are currently working on an approach to ensure contractors that act on behalf of the 

Council (in a capacity relevant to safeguarding requirements) comply with safeguarding 

policy including, where appropriate, having criminal records checks for staff. 

1.23 Front-line staff working for a contractor delivering services on behalf of the Council will also 

be required to attend a safeguarding awareness session. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 Consultation relating to the review has taken place with the Corporate Management Team 

and across service areas that have high involvement in safeguarding.  Any feedback offered 

by members of Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be built into 

the review process. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 The Council could retain the status quo in relation to safeguarding. Whilst we would maintain 

the high levels achieved in audits referred to above, this would still leave the Authority with 

a single point of failure. 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 The preferred option is for the findings of the review to be fully implemented to ensure we 

achieve the ethos that safeguarding is everyone’s responsibility. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 To offer opportunity for scrutiny of current and future practice in the delivery of the Council’s 

duty to safeguard. 

18



 

 
 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 Amendments to current functions and procedures will be embedded into existing 

safeguarding practices.  A further update will be provided to this Committee once all actions 

of this review are completed. All changes will be communicated throughout the Council to 

ensure awareness of requirements.  The outcome of the 2021 Section 11 Safeguarding 

Children Audit will be reported to officers and elected Members and any actions resulting 

from that audit will be acted upon within the timescale agreed between safeguarding officers 

and the audit moderator. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 These changes will improve the council’s compliance with its safeguarding responsibilities. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 Equality considerations that arise from this review will be addressed before any changes to 

policy or process are introduced.  Equality analysis will be carried out as required. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 No risks of a significant nature have been identified in relation to this report. 

11 Community Safety Implications 

11.1 No community safety implications arise in relation to this report. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’? 

12.1 Nothing of relevance identified in relation to this report. 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 No other significant implications identified 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 Cabinet Minutes – 17th March 2020 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix A – Training and Development Requirements 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) N/A 

Not applicable 

Previously Considered by: N/A Not applicable 

Final Decision date  N/A Not applicable 

 

19

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3829&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A  

Training and Development 

It is essential that everyone to whom this safeguarding policy applies is able to recognise and 

respond to possible safeguarding risks and issues across all relevant policy areas. The level 

of training and knowledge required is determined by each person’s role and their level of 

contact with vulnerable customers – all roles within the organisation have been categorised 

using the requirements of the National Competencies Framework (NCF) for Children and 

Adults. 

All training is delivered either face-to-face or via e-learning modules which are either delivered 

in partnership with, or endorsed by the respective safeguarding, domestic abuse, Prevent 

boards and strategic groups. Safeguarding training is mandatory. If you are unsure which 

level of training is relevant to your role or if you have any questions, please contact the relevant 

Deputy Safeguarding Officer or your line manager for advice. 

Training is completed on a 6 year rolling programme. The e-learning modules relating to the 

safeguarding of children and adults can be accessed via the Lincolnshire Safeguarding 

Children Partnership (LSCP) website. To find out which training you need to complete, please 

see the tables below. 

 

Training 

Group 
Definition for Grouping Who is this? 

1 
Those with infrequent contact with children, young 

people and vulnerable adults who may become aware 

of possible abuse, neglect or maltreatment. 

All staff, volunteers 

and elected members 

2 

Those with regular contact or periods of intense but 

irregular contact with children, young people, and 

vulnerable adults who may be in a position to identify 

concerns regarding abuse, neglect or maltreatment.  

Appropriate staff in 

Housing 

Neighbourhoods, 

Environmental Health, 

Revenues and 

Benefits, Rents 

3 

Those who represent the Council at multi-agency 

meetings dealing with the safeguarding and protection 

of vulnerable individuals (Team Around the Child 

(TAC), Child in Need (CiN), Child Protection(CP), 

Adult Safeguarding meetings, Multi-Agency Public 

Protection Arrangements (MAPPA), Multi-Agency Risk 

Assessment Conference (MARAC etc) 

Deputy Safeguarding 

Officers 

Appropriate staff in 

Housing and 

Neighbourhoods 

4 

Those who are responsible for ensuring that the 

management and delivery of safeguarding duties is 

effective and efficient. They have oversight of the 

development of systems, policies and procedures in 

the organisation to facilitate good working 

partnerships with allied agencies to ensure 

consistency in approach and quality of service. 

Those responsible for ensuring their organisation is at 

all levels fully committed to safeguarding and have 

appropriate systems and resources in place.  

Designated 

Safeguarding Lead, 

Deputy Safeguarding 

Officers, appropriate 

Directors, Heads of 

Service and Team 

Leaders 

21

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/lscp


 

 Group 

INDUCTION:  

Safeguarding Everyone in Lincolnshire All 

Safer Recruitment 4 

Year 1  

Introduction to Safeguarding Adults 2,3,4 

Introduction to Safeguarding Children 2,3,4 

Domestic Abuse – Short Course All 

Domestic Abuse, Controlling Coercive Behaviour and Stalking 2, 3,4 

Mental Capacity Act – An Overview 2, 3,4 

Year 2  

Friends Against Scams All 

Hate Crime All 

Radicalisation and Extremism (or equivalent) All 

Basic Awareness of Child & Adult Sexual Exploitation 2, 3,4 

Children and Young People who go Missing 2,3,4 

Year 3  

Tackling Exploitation and Modern Slavery  All 

Introduction to FGM, Forced Marriage, Spirit Possession & Honour Based 
Violence 

2, 3 

LSCP Pre-Birth Protocol 2, 3,4 

LSCP Mobile Families Guidance 2, 3,4 

Year 4   

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 2, 3, 

Toxic Trio 2, 3 

Understanding the Impacts of Suicidal Thoughts  All 

Year 5  

An Introduction to the Autism Spectrum 2,3 

A New Approach to Child Poverty 2,3 

Working with Adults who Self-Neglect 2,3 

Year 6  

Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) 2,3 

Young Carers (Short Course) 2,3 

 

Elected Members: All elected members will be offered safeguarding training when they are 

elected, as part of the induction process. They will also be required to complete the e-learning 

induction module ‘Safeguarding Everyone in Lincolnshire’ during their first year in office. 

Elected Members are also required to increase their safeguarding awareness during their term 

of office by completing training modules: 

• Friends Against Scams 

• Trafficking, Exploitation and Modern Slavery in Lincolnshire 

• Radicalisation and Extremism 

• Hate Crime 

Staff without IT access: All staff without IT access will need to attend safeguarding briefing 

sessions. The briefing will cover general safeguarding principles, personal responsibilities and 

who to contact with any concerns. 

22



Face to Face Training: Certain roles, mainly those in training groups 2 and 3, will require 

more in-depth, face-to-face training. This will be a decision for line managers and Heads of 

Service in relevant service areas e.g. Neighbourhoods, Homelessness and Housing. Below is 

a list of available training. This list and the e learning listed above is not exhaustive.  All training 

can be accessed via the LSCP website. Please speak to your line manager if you feel any of 

these modules may be beneficial for you. 

Face-to-Face Training Days 

Inter-Agency Safeguarding Children and Young People (there is an e-learning 
refresher module ‘Safeguarding Children Refresher’ 3 years after this course has 
been completed) 

 
2 

Section 42 Enquiries, Safeguarding Adults 1 

Child Exploitation 1 

Multi-Agency Domestic Abuse  1 

Supporting Children and Young People with Mental Health in Lincolnshire 1 

Mental Capacity Act 1 

Recognise Disguised Compliance and Disengagement within Families 1 

Drug Awareness 1 

The Unrecognised Power of Language 1 

Adult Exploitation 1 

 

 

23

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/lscp


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Rural and Communities Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 

11 March 2021 

Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 

  Cabinet Member for Communities 

         
  

 

Modern Slavery Charter 

The Safer Lincolnshire Partnership's Charter against Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking 
commits organisations to proactively take steps internally to tackle the issue whilst, at the same 
time, ensuring that they are contributing to the wider collective effort to protect communities across 
Lincolnshire.    

 

Report Author 

Carol Drury, Senior Community Development Officer 

 
 01476 406 161 

  c.drury@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Paul Stokes, Head of Corporate Operations 5 February 2021 

Approved by: Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive 8 February 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Annie Mason, Cabinet Member for 
Communities 

11 February 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to note the 
content of the report and comment on the appended Charter and related actions 
proposed. 

2. The Committee is asked to recommend to the Cabinet Member for Communities the 
Council’s adoption of the Safer Lincolnshire Partnership’s Modern Slavery Charter 

 

25

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The Safer Lincolnshire Partnership is asking all its partners to adopt its Charter against 

Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking.  The Charter, which was formally launched by the 

Safer Lincolnshire Partnership in January 2021, can be found at Appendix A and requires 

the Council to commit to having adequately trained staff and procedures in place to ensure 

we can effectively tackle the issues of Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking and also 

contribute to the wider collective effort to protect communities across Lincolnshire. 

1.2 This report sets out South Kesteven District Council’s commitment to recognising and 

reducing risk around Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking within Lincolnshire and the 

proposal to adopt the Safer Lincolnshire Partnership’s Charter against Modern Slavery and 

Human Trafficking. 

1.3 Modern Slavery is a broad term that can include: 

• Forced labour – any work or services, which people are, forced to do against their 
will under the threat of some form of punishment.  

• Debt bondage or bonded labour – the world’s most widespread form of slavery, 
when people borrow money they cannot repay and are required to work to pay off 
the debt, then losing control over the conditions of both their employment and the 
debt.  

• Human trafficking– involves transporting, recruiting or harbouring people for the 
purpose of exploitation, using violence, threats or coercion.  

• Descent-based slavery – where people are born into slavery because their 
ancestors were captured and enslaved; they remain in slavery by descent. 

• Child slavery – many people often confuse child slavery with child labour, but it is 
much worse. Whilst child labour is harmful for children and hinders their education 
and development, child slavery occurs when a child is exploited for someone else’s 
gain. It can include child trafficking, child soldiers, child marriage and child domestic 
slavery. 

• Forced and early marriage – when someone is married against their will and cannot 
leave the marriage. Most child marriages can be considered slavery. 

 

1.4 South Kesteven District Council’s role in preventing Modern Slavery includes: 

• Ensuring staff and elected Members have a clear understanding of Modern Slavery 
and know how to recognise and report concerns.  

• Ensuring all staff and elected Members are complying with the Council’s training 
requirements for the safeguarding of vulnerable individuals.  

• Communicating and promoting materials highlighting Modern Slavery as an issue 
within Lincolnshire.  

• Ensuring our policies and procedures are in line with the Modern Slavery Charter 
and current guidance. 

 

1.5 The Charter contains seven commitments. Officers have reviewed these and the 

commitments are currently being achieved or are able to be achieved within existing 

resources.  All actions are a collective responsibility across the Authority ensuring we further 

embed the ethos that safeguarding is everyone’s responsibility.   

1.6 Appendix B provides reassurance of how each commitment is being, or will be, met.  

26



 

 
 

1.7 Members are asked to review, and comment on, the attached appendices and recommend 

to the Cabinet Member for Communities that South Kesteven District Council joins with other 

Lincolnshire Authorities and adopts the Modern Slavery Charter. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 Consultation has taken place across the collective partners of the Safer Lincolnshire 

Partnership in order to develop a Charter that is meaningful and achievable. Feedback 

received from Members of the Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

will be shared with the Cabinet Member for Communities in order for an informed decision 

to be made relating to the adoption of the Modern Slavery Charter by South Kesteven 

District Council.  

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 No other options were considered as part of this process. 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 N/A 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 Modern Slavery forms part of the Council’s responsibilities to safeguard vulnerable 

individuals from harm.  In adopting this Charter the Council is committing to working in 

collaboration with other Authorities in Lincolnshire to tackle Modern Slavery in all its forms. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 Once recommendations have been made by the Rural and Communities Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee the Cabinet Member for Communities will adopt the Charter on behalf 

of the Council and it will be incorporated into our Safeguarding policy and procedures and 

its actions reported on in subsequent annual reports on Safeguarding and Equalities. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The charter and the Council’s input to delivering its objectives fit with the council’s 

safeguarding obligations and is to be welcomed. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail Director of Law and Governance 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 The formal adoption of this Charter will complement existing policies and procedures and 

ensure the Council has a strong, collaborative, foundation to safeguard vulnerable 

individuals and ensure equitable service. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 No significant risks identified in relation to this report. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

27



 

 
 

11.1 The Council will continue to work with partner agencies to meet all community safety 

requirements resulting from incidents of modern slavery with appropriate referrals being 

made to law enforcement, safeguarding and the national referral mechanism when concerns 

are identified. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 Not applicable to this report 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 None 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix A – Modern Slavery Charter 

15.2 Appendix B – Response Table 

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)  N/A 

Not applicable 

Previously Considered by:  Not applicable 

Final Decision date  N/A Not applicable 

 

28



 

Version 1 – June 2020 
 

 
CHARTER AGAINST MODERN SLAVERY AND 

HUMAN TRAFFICKING 

The Safer Lincolnshire Partnership's Charter against Modern Slavery and Human 

Trafficking commits organisations to proactively take steps internally to tackle 

the issue; whilst at the same time ensuring that they are contributing to the 

wider collective effort to protect communities across Lincolnshire.    

(Your Organisation) will: 

1. Attend and actively contribute to the Safer Lincolnshire Partnership core 
priority group to ensure that the objectives of the group, as set out in 
the Safer Lincolnshire Partnership Modern Slavery delivery plan, are 
met.  

2. Identify staff who require training in awareness, identification and action 
to be taken related to suspicion or disclosures of Modern Slavery taking 
into account the different competence requirements of particular roles. 

3. Have an effective Modern Slavery policy or procedure in place detailing 
how to respond to suspicion or disclosures of Modern Slavery. This will 
include the process for notifying Lincolnshire Police & onward action as 
per the Lincolnshire multi-agency Modern Slavery process.   

4. Have a process for escalating concerns related to Modern Slavery where 
appropriate action is believed not to have occurred to protect victims of 
Modern Slavery.  

5. Ensure information about Modern Slavery is included on its website with 

links to the national Victim Care Contract prime provider as well as the 

Modern Slavery helpline.  

6. Ensure Modern Slavery resources are displayed, in different languages 
where relevant to local communities and are also available in alternative 
formats such as large print upon request. 

7. Report publicly on the implementation of this Charter annually.   

29

Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



Safer Lincolnshire Partnership Modern Slavery Charter – Requirements and Responses                  Appendix B 

Requirement SKDC Response Timeline/Responsibility 
Attend and actively contribute to the Safer 
Lincolnshire Partnership core priority group to 
ensure that the objectives of the group, as 
set out in the Safer Lincolnshire Partnership 
Modern Slavery delivery plan, are met.  

Protecting people from modern slavery and trafficking falls within 
the Council’s Safeguarding responsibilities.  The Deputy 
Safeguarding Officer represents South Kesteven District Council on 
this group. 

Group meets quarterly. Feedback to 
Designated Safeguarding Lead to inform 
Cabinet Member for Communities and CMT as 
part of Safeguarding update. 
Actions disseminated to responsible Heads of 
Service 

Identify staff who require training in 
awareness, identification and action to be 
taken related to suspicion or disclosures of 
Modern Slavery taking into account the 
different competence requirements of 
particular roles. 

Tackling Exploitation and Modern Slavery training is a requirement 
for staff and Elected Members through our agreed Safeguarding 
Policy 2020/23.  This module of e learning is available through 
Lincolnshire’s Safeguarding Children Partnership and Safeguarding 
Adults Board. 

Ongoing programme. 
Member Services to ensure the agreed 
safeguarding training for Elected Members is 
rolled and completed. 
Heads of Service to ensure staff are 
appropriately trained. 

Have an effective Modern Slavery policy or 
procedure in place detailing how to respond 
to suspicion or disclosures of Modern 
Slavery. This will include the process for 
notifying Lincolnshire Police & onward action 
as per the Lincolnshire multi-agency Modern 
Slavery process.   

Chapter 7 of South Kesteven District Council’s Safeguarding Policy 
is dedicated to Modern Slavery and Trafficking.  This chapter 
provides an overview of Modern Slavery and includes information 
on raising concerns, making referrals and also provides links to 
further information.  The policy is reviewed on an annual basis to 
ensure it remains fit for purpose. 

Annual review or more frequent as a response 
to legislative or statutory guidance changes. 
Safeguarding officers to update policy and 
disseminate via Heads of Service who should 
ensure staff and elected Members have access 
to up to date policy and procedures 

Have a process for escalating concerns 
related to Modern Slavery where appropriate 
action is believed not to have occurred to 
protect victims of Modern Slavery.  

As an integral part of existing safeguarding processes information 
on inter-agency disputes and escalation policies is contained within 
the Council’s Safeguarding Policy 

Annual review or more frequent as a response 
to legislative or statutory guidance changes. 
Safeguarding officers to update policy and 
disseminate via Heads of Service who should 
ensure staff and elected Members have access 
to up to date policy and procedures 

Ensure information about Modern Slavery is 
included on its website with links to the 
national Victim Care Contract prime provider 
as well as the Modern Slavery helpline.  

The Council’s website currently contains a limited amount of 
information relating to Modern Slavery.  To meet this objective a 
review of this information and an update to reflect the latest 
information and guidance is underway. 

March 2021 
Safeguarding and Communications Officers to 
work collaboratively to deliver against this action 

Ensure Modern Slavery resources are 
displayed, in different languages where 
relevant to local communities and are also 
available in alternative formats such as large 
print upon request. 

Resources are made available in 5 other languages via the Safer 
Lincolnshire Partnership.  These are shared with relevant voluntary 
and community groups in South Kesteven and are displayed in 
Council buildings. When community-facing services re-open to the 
public a review of sites will be undertaken to ensure information is 
available in the most appropriate places.  Alternative formats are 
available on requests as a matter of SKDC exiting practice 

Processes already in place for distribution and 
display.  To be reviewed once Covid restrictions 
have been lifted. Community-facing teams to 
ensure information is available and up to date in 
SKDC buildings.  Community Engagement staff 
to share information with the Voluntary and 
Community Sector 

Report publicly on the implementation of this 
Charter annually.   
 

Existing practice is that an Annual Report on Safeguarding is 
presented to Governance and Audit Committee and, under 
requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty we also produce an 
Equality and Diversity Annual Position Statement.  Reporting in 
relation to this Charter will be incorporated into these published 
documents. 

September 2021 and annually thereafter. 
Community Development Officer with 
responsibilities for safeguarding and equalities 
to prepare, present and publish the required 
information. 

 

31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Rural and Communities Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 

11th March 2021 

Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 

  Cabinet Member for Communities 

         
  

 

 The Mental Health Challenge – South Kesteven 

Promoting positive mental health is a huge issue nationally, particularly given the challenges 
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.  South Kesteven District Council is committed to playing its 
part in supporting mental health and, following a workshop commissioned by the Rural and 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee, has formed a Member/Officer working party to 
shape the response.   
 
This report provides an update on activity from the working group and sets out a proposed motion 
to Full Council that would commit the authority to the Local Authority Mental Health Challenge.  

 

Report Author 

Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive 

 
 01476 40 60 80 

  Ken.Lyon@Southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Gary Smith, Strategic Director, Commercial and 
Operations 

2 March 2021 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 3 March 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Annie Mason, Cabinet Member for 
Communities  

3 March 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Notes the contents of and supports the motion attached in Appendix A that South 
Kesteven District Council join the Local Authority Mental Health Challenge and the 
proposed appointment of a Member Champion for Mental Health. 

2. Notes the progress and the proposed areas for work of the Member/Officer Mental 
Health working party. 

33

Agenda Item 10

mailto:Ken.Lyon@Southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

3. Notes the alignment with other key strategies and documents such as the 
Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment and other public, private and voluntary sector organisations 
(including the National Health Service and Lincolnshire County Council). 

4. Requests feedback from the Mental Health working party every six months. 

 

34



 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 Supporting positive mental health is a key priority nationally and internationally, which is 

heightened by the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.  In June 2020 MIND reported that 

one in four people in England will experience Mental Health issues in a year and one in six 

people in any given week experience a common mental health problem.  

1.2 Lincolnshire has a well established framework for addressing mental health challenges, 

overseen by the multi-agency Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB), which includes 

representatives from Lincolnshire County Council, Health organisations, the Police and 

includes representation from District Councils.  This provides a ‘golden thread’ from 

identified needs, through policy setting to service delivery across a range of partners.  The 

HWB is responsible for: 

- Producing the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 

- Informing the priorities in the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

- Agreeing the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment. 

1.3 The JSNA is a shared evidence base made up of commentaries and data sources that 

report on the key areas of health and wellbeing in Lincolnshire. Each topic area assesses 

the current picture in Lincolnshire’s existing services and looks ahead to potential future 

level of need to support effective service planning and commissioning.  This is then used 

to inform the development of priorities with the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

1.4 The JSNA and Health and Wellbeing Strategy demonstrate that supporting mental health 

is a key priority for Lincolnshire and therefore it is imperative that all agencies, especially 

organisations such as District Councils who offer a range of universal services (such as 

Leisure, Housing and Waste) play their part in promoting positive mental wellbeing for 

residents and staff.  It is equally important that activity initiated by SKDC aligns with the 

strategy set by the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

1.5 The JSNA demonstrates that mental wellbeing is a key issue for Lincolnshire as a whole 

and, for South Kesteven as a District, the impact of Covid-19 and associated social 

restrictions have exacerbated these issues, meaning that positive mental health is of even 

greater importance. 

Mental Health Challenge for South Kesteven District Council   

1.6 During the Summer of 2020 a Member of the Council contacted the Cabinet Member for 

Communities and invited her to consider proposing a motion to Council that SKDC sign up 

to the Local Authority Mental Health Challenge.  To support wider Member engagement it 

was decided to discuss the proposal with the Rural and Communities Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee, who commissioned a Member workshop, which took place on 10 

December 2020 and was attended by 10 Members. 

1.7 Two of the key outcomes of the workshop were: 

- A strong level of support for signing up to the Local Authority Mental Health Challenge 

and to develop a SKDC response to the Mental Health challenge  

- To create a Member/Officer Mental Health Working Party to shape the development of a 

motion to Council and provide oversight for SKDC led activity 

1.8 Five Members volunteered to be part of the Mental Health Working Party (Cllrs Baxter, 

Dilks, Mason, Trotter and Wheeler) alongside four officers.  Cllr Sue Woolley was 

35



 

 
 

subsequently invited to join the Working Party in view of her expertise in the area and her 

role on the Health and Wellbeing Board.  Alongside oversight of activity the Working Party 

were also asked to nominate a ‘Member Champion’ for SKDC – in line with the Local 

Authority Mental Health Challenge. 

1.9 At the inaugural meeting on 22 January the Working Party proposed Cllr Annie Mason, 

Cabinet Member for Communities, as the SKDC Member Champion and also proposed a 

draft motion to Council in response to the Mental Health Challenge attached in Appendix 

A, which focuses on a number of areas, including to: 

- Support positive mental wellbeing in our community, including neighbourhoods and 

workplaces 

- Support positive mental wellbeing within our own workforce and elected Members 

- Consider mental wellbeing in decision making and policy 

- Work with local partners including Lincolnshire County Council and the voluntary and 

community sector 

- Engage with Lincolnshire County Council strategy and activity and the Joint Health and 

Wellbeing Board for Lincolnshire. 

1.10 Alongside the appointment of a Member Champion the Council is also required to appoint 

a lead officer, who is proposed to be the incoming Deputy Chief Executive, with support 

also to be provided by the Leisure Officer. 

1.11 If the motion is adopted by Council it is intended that these areas will form the focus of the 

Mental Health Working Party, alongside a focus on identifying training and support to 

equip officers and Members in playing their part in supporting positive mental wellbeing.  

Progress updates will be reported against these priorities to future overview and scrutiny 

committees. 

1.12 The recommendations in this report support the South Kesteven Corporate Plan 2020-23 

– which has an action under the Health and Strong Communities priority to “Embrace the 

national mental health challenge, ensuring the Council places mental wellbeing at the 

heart of decision making.” 

1.13 Therefore Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to support 

the motion attached in Appendix A and requests frequent updates from the Cabinet 

Member for Communities.  

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 Both Rural and Communities (12 November 2020) and Culture and Visitor Economy (17 

November 2020) Overview and Scrutiny Committees were consulted on the development 

of a Mental Health Working Party and members of these committees were offered the 

opportunity to be part of the scoping workshop. 

2.2 The Mental Health Challenge organisation has been consulted with as part of the 

development of proposals and has expressed keenness to adopt SKDC as one of its 

members. 

2.3 Alongside these actions, informal consultation has also been undertaken with a number of 

organisations active in promoting positive mental health within the District, including health 

colleagues and those active in the voluntary and community sector. 

36



 

 
 

2.4 Members of the Mental Health Working Party have undertaken to review best practice in 

District Councils elsewhere, which has included engagement and learning from activity 

across the Country, all of which will help inform the South Kesteven approach. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 Option 1 – Support the motion that SKDC joins the Local Authority Mental Health 

Challenge – this will provide a public commitment for the Council in supporting positive 

mental wellbeing in the District. 

3.2 Option 2 - Not support the motion that that SKDC joins the Local Authority Mental Health 

Challenge – although this would mean that the Council does not commit to joining the 

Challenge there would be opportunities to positively influence mental health in the District. 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 Option 1 – Support the motion to Council that SKDC joins the Local Authority Mental 

Health Challenge. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to accept the 

recommendations in the report because mental health is a key issue in the District 

currently and it is important that SKDC plays its part in addressing the issues.  Should 

Council adopt the proposed motion it would commit the organisation to exploring 

opportunities to support positive mental wellbeing for residents and staff within the District. 

5.2 The recommendation also supports the delivery of the Corporate Plan 2020-23, which 

includes an action to “Embrace the national mental health challenge, ensuring the Council 

places mental wellbeing at the heart of decision making.” 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 If the recommendations are agreed, the motion attached at Appendix A will be presented 

by the Cabinet Member for Communities to Full Council for consideration on 20 May 2021. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 Any financial implications that may arise from the proposed recommendations and the 

draft motion to Council will be met from budgets that were approved by Council on 1 

March 2021. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 Should Council adopt the attached motion it will feed positively into decision making and 

support equality and safeguarding through the promotion of positive mental health. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 No significant risks have been identified relating to this report 

37



 

 
 

11 Community Safety Implications 

11.1 There are no community safety implications arising from this report. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’? 

12.1 Nothing of relevance identified in relation to this report. 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 No other significant implications identified 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 Rural and Communities OSC Minutes 12.11.20 

14.2 Cultural and Visitor Economy OSC Minutes 17.11.20 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix A – Draft Motion to Council to propose the adoption of Local Authority Mental 

Health Challenge 

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

NA 

Previously Considered by: N/A NA 

Final Decision date   20 May 2020 

 

38



The Mental Health Challenge for Local Authorities 

 

As we look to the recovery phase of the COVID-19 crisis, it is essential that the Council puts the 

Mental Wellbeing of residents, staff and elected members at the forefront of our agenda. Therefore, 

we ask the Council to sign the Mental Health Challenge for Local Authorities, set out below: 

 

This Council believes: 

 

- As a local authority, we have a crucial role to play in improving the mental wellbeing for 

everyone in our community. 

- Mental wellbeing should be a priority across all the Authority’s areas of responsibility, 

including, housing, community safety, engagement, planning and leisure. 

- All elected members in our community and in casework roles, can play a positive role in 

championing mental wellbeing on an individual and strategic basis. 

 

This Council resolves: 

 

- To sign up to the Mental Health Challenge for Local Authorities. 

- To appoint an elected member as the Council’s ‘Mental Health Champion’. 

- To identify a member of staff within the Council to act as ‘Lead Officer’ for mental health 

and wellbeing. 

- To form a working party made up of cross-party members and officers to meet every 8 

weeks, all members and officers, which will take a lead role and ownership of activity. 

 

The Council will also: 

- Support positive mental wellbeing in our community, including neighbourhoods and 

workplaces. 

- Support positive mental wellbeing within our own workforce and elected members. 

- Consider mental wellbeing in decision making and policy. 

- Work with local partners including Lincolnshire County Council and the Voluntary Sector. 

- Engage with Lincolnshire County Council strategy and activity and the Joint Health & 

Wellbeing Board for Lincolnshire. 

 

This Council notes: 

 

- The Joint Health and Wellbeing Board for Lincolnshire plays an active role in the health and 

wellbeing of our District and it is vital as we move forward that any activities, projects or 

interventions we promote locally are mindful of the Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing 

Strategy and Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and are complementary to the work of our 

county partners. 

- Mental Health issues for Adults and Children are within the remit of Health partners 

- This Authority’s role within this challenge will specifically focus on mental wellbeing and 

wellness. 

 

 

39

Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Rural and Communities Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 

11 March 2021 

Report of: Councillor Robert Reid  

  Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Planning 

           

 

Regulatory Non-compliance Notice   

Covering the actions and impacts of the regulatory findings in respect of publication of non-
compliance notice by the Social Housing Regulator.  
 

 

 

Report Author 

Chris Stratford, Interim Assistant Director of Housing 

 
 01476 406080 

  chris.stratford@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Housing Non-Key All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive  26 February 2021 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive  26 February 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Robert Reid , Cabinet member for Housing 
and Planning 

3 March 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. That the Committee notes that the non-compliance notice in respect of the 
Regulators findings has now been published by the Regulator of Social Housing.  

2. That the Committee notes the further work and other activities associated with 
working with the Regulator of Social Housing in dealing matters of non-compliance 
identified within the Notice.  

 

 

41

Agenda Item 11

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

3. That the Committee receives further reports which identify progress in respect of 
core work activities agreed with the Regulator and aimed at restoring full 
compliance, to allow the notice of non-compliance to be removed at the 
appropriate time by the Regulator. 

 

42



 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 As Members will be aware the Chief Executive determined to self-refer the Council to the 

Regulator of Social Housing. Since this referral Officers have been providing further data 

and details relating to the core issues of non-compliance for the Regulator to consider and 

review. This information has included the agreed Improvement Plan for recovery, as 

approved by members of the Council, and other details indicating actions taken to begin 

the process of rectifying matters of compliance concern.  

1.2 Two meetings have also taken place with the Regulator to discuss points of clarification 

and finalise information requests. These meetings and the requested information have 

been provided as required, and this has allowed the Regulator to reach a decision and 

issue and publish the appropriate notice. This is attached for Members to refer to as 

Appendix A. 

1.3 Members will see under the heading ‘Regulatory Findings’ that two primary conclusions 

have been reached by the regulator. These are: 

A) South Kesteven District Council has breached part 1.2 of the Homes Standard; and 

B) As a consequence of this breach, there was the potential for serious detriment to South 

Kesteven Council tenants.  

1.4 In making this determination the Regulator has however concluded that it would not at this 

time use its legal powers against the Council, given that officers have demonstrated 

adequate steps have been taken to strengthen the senior management resources, and 

has already taken action to begin improvements in respect of key compliance issues. 

Following the service of the notice however the necessary journey to full compliance 

needs to now be undertaken and the initial and ongoing core activities and actions are as 

follows: 

1.5 Updating Tenants and Members: Just prior to the publication of the Notice a further ‘all 

member’ briefing session was undertaken, this presentation including a detailed update on 

ongoing progress around compliance, updating of the Improvement Plan, and indications 

of service improvements such as major IT project implementation and contract works to 

progress the journey to full compliance was concluded. 

1.6 Tenants have also received a further update letter relating to the notice, and confirming 

further progress achieved around service improvement areas since the original letter was 

sent in November of 2020. It is proposed that this committee receives further improvement 

plan progress reports, and further planned all member briefings will take place as required. 

Finally, a current review on how best to engage and seek tenant involvement for the future 

will be completed, and then implemented to ensure the Council fully complies with 

requirements of the new Housing Act in this critical respect.   

1.7 Audit Review Process: As the Committee will be aware the original Audit report 

completed and submitted to Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 

and Governance and Audit included towards the end of 2020 contained a significant 

amount of recommendations to begin the process of recovery. It was agreed a further 

review audit should be undertaken to identify progress and this has been completed 

during the week commencing 15th February 2021. The full report will be presented to the 

next Governance and Audit Committee to be held on the 18th March 2021 but officers will 

update this committee during consideration of this report. It is anticipated that as part of 

the audit workplan for 2021 a further detailed audit will be completed for housing services 

43



 

 
 

during the summer of 2021. The objective of these continuous pieces of detailed work, is 

to intensively and forensically review and evidence base around the necessary 

compliance and service improvements required to provide assurance to members around 

process and regulatory compliance. This committee will also play its full role in reviewing 

and scrutinising these report details and further recommendations as they come forward. 

1.8 Regular Meeting with the Regulator: It has already been agreed with the Regulator that 

now that the Notice has been published, monthly meetings between the Chief Executive, 

Director of Housing and Property Services, and the Regulators Officers will take place. 

The first of these was due to take place on Friday 26th February. It is intended to update 

this committee as to the outcome of this initial meeting during consideration of this report. 

A work plan of activity along with the necessary update briefings with the Regulator will be 

arranged, and this committee will be advised as to progress and any issues or challenges 

arising following these sessions. Clearly the review and updating of the Councils 

improvement plan will be brought forward for Members to review and comment on as 

required.  

1.9 Weekly Leadership Compliancy Meetings: Chaired by Portfolio Holder for Housing and 

Planning and attended by the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive, these 

meetings have been a continued feature of the more detailed compliance review process 

being undertaken. These will continue and will manage and direct specific responses to 

the changing compliance review process, direct and inform work around specific issues of 

member involvement through the all member briefing process, and manage tenant and 

communication responses to actions associated with key service and regulatory 

responses.  

1.10 Regular Reporting to Committees and Cabinet: The necessary reporting to appropriate 

committees will continue to be planned into the Council’s business activities. This includes 

the specific scrutiny role of this committee in the ways identified above, and where 

necessary and as required or identified by the Regulator to Cabinet and indeed full 

Council.   

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 The necessary consultation with the tenants and members of the Council has been 

undertaken through timely reporting, dispatch of letters to advise tenants of progress, the 

Skyline publication, dedicated customer telephone enquiry line, and an updated Web site 

detailing compliance issues and signposting services. Further appropriate reports on the 

detailed elements of non-compliance have been scrutinised through detailed audit 

submissions, and the review and updating process of the high-level Improvement Plan.  

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 These will be further determined through further work with the Regulator, and by way of 

Improvement Plan and consideration of key outputs by Members, and the weekly 

Leadership Compliance meetings.  

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 To proceed in conjunction with the support and guidance of the Regulator, and to ensure 

audit and regulatory requirements are fully met by way of timely actions, reporting, and 

agreed improvement plan activity.  

 

44



 

 
 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 To secure as determined by the Regulator a return to full compliance in respect of housing 

services, including the identification of appropriate resources, funds, and service 

improvements in a timely manner.  

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 To continue to build upon the Improvement Plan process, seek to secure a deliverable 

work plan with the regulator, and provide timely and necessary information for members 

so that robust decision making, and customer improvements can take place.  

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 The financial considerations arising from the compliance requirements have been 

incorporated in the budgets presented and approved by Council on 1 March 2021.  

However, should there be any subsequent financial considerations during the year arising 

from the ongoing actions then these will be considered by members at that time.    

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The necessary legal impacts have been identified and considered as the process of 

dealing with compliance progresses. Further consideration and advice from legal services 

will be secured as necessary. The Monitoring Officer will provide a verbal update at the 

meeting. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 All the necessary Safeguarding and equality issues will be identified and complied with as 

the necessary compliance and improvement activities take place.  

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 The necessary risk issues, logs, and mitigations will be identified through the necessary 

work plans, and any work outputs agreed with the Regulator. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 These will be identified as part of the compliance mitigation and implementation plans. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 Any capital improvement plans especially in the context of dealing with essential gas, and 

electrical works will aim to maximise energy efficiency measures, and reductions in carbon 

emissions. Detailed contract reports for such activities will provide the necessary detail to 

approval by Members.  

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None currently. 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 Previous reports, and correspondence with Regulator.  

45



 

 
 

15 Appendices 

15.1 As above, Appendix A - Regulator Notice.  

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

N/A 

Previously Considered by:  N/A 

Final Decision date   11 March 2021 

 

46



 

 

 
Page 1 of 3 

OFFICIAL  

 

 
 

 

 

 

Regulatory Notice  
February 2021 

 

 
Registered Provider  
 

South Kesteven District Council (South Kesteven DC). 

Registration number [32UG] 

 

Regulatory Finding  
 

The regulator has concluded that: 
 

a) South Kesteven DC has breached part 1.2 of the Home Standard; and 
 

b) As a consequence of this breach, there was the potential for serious 
detriment to South Kesteven DC tenants.  

 
The regulator will work with South Kesteven DC as it seeks to remedy this breach 
and will continue to consider what further action should be taken. 

 

The Case  
 
As a local authority registered provider, South Kesteven DC is required to comply 
with the consumer standards, including the Home standard. The Home standard 
requires registered providers to have a cost-effective repairs and maintenance 
service and to meet all applicable statutory requirements that provide for the health 
and safety of occupants in their homes.   
 
Our assessment of the information received through a self-referral from South 
Kesteven DC is that the Council has failed to meet statutory health and safety 
requirements. Specifically, the requirements in relation to fire safety, the safety of 
heating appliances, electrical safety, and asbestos safety.   
 

47

Appendix A



Regulatory Notice  
South Kesteven District 

Council [32UG] 

 

 
Page 2 of 3 

 
OFFICIAL  

In respect of fire safety, South Kesteven DC has a statutory duty1 to regularly 
assess the risk of fire and to take precautions to prevent the risk of fire. In this 
regard the regulator has learned that over a thousand remedial actions identified in 
fire risk assessments carried out in 2017 had not been completed. There have also 
been failings in ensuring that solid fuel heating appliances do not pose a risk to 
tenants. South Kesteven DC found annual inspections and cleaning of solid fuel 
heating appliances for a smaller number of properties had not been scheduled or 
completed in a timely way.  
 
With regard to electrical safety, South Kesteven DC is required to ensure that 
electrical installations are in working and safe condition both at the start of any 
tenancy and throughout that tenancy2. South Kesteven DC has reported that none 
of the Council’s communal areas had an electrical inspection and just under half of 
all its properties had out of date inspections, some of which were more than ten 
years old. For asbestos safety3, South Kesteven has reported that nearly three 
hundred surveys of communal areas were overdue and should have been 
completed in 2019. For these reasons, the regulator concluded that South 
Kesteven DC has breached the Home Standard, and as consequence, there was 
the potential for serious detriment to tenants. 
 
Since identifying these issues, South Kesteven DC has strengthened its senior 
capacity and is developing an action plan to address the underlying weaknesses in 
its systems. A programme of work has commenced, and we have been assured by 
South Kesteven DC that it has taken immediate and appropriate action to ensure 
the safety of tenants while the programme is being delivered. 
 

The Regulator’s Findings  
 

The regulator considered the case as a potential breach of part 1.2 of the Home 
standard and has concluded that South Kesteven DC did not have an effective 
system in place to allow it to meet its statutory health and safety responsibilities 
across a range of areas.   
 
Complying with statutory health and safety requirements is a fundamental 
responsibility of all registered providers because of the potential for serious harm 
to tenants. South Kesteven DC has demonstrated to the regulator the progress it is 
making to ensure the required statutory checks, and relevant safety actions, are 
completed, and that appropriate mitigations are in place in the meantime. 
However, taking into account the seriousness of the issues, the durations for which 
tenants were potentially exposed to risk, and the number of tenants potentially 
affected, the regulator has concluded that it is proportionate to find that South 
Kesteven DC has breached the Home standard and that there was a risk of 
serious detriment to tenants during this period.   
 
Section 198A of the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 (as amended) states that 
the regulator’s regulatory and enforcement powers may be used if a registered 

 
1 Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 
2 Landlord and Tenant Act 1985 
3 Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012 

48



Regulatory Notice  
South Kesteven District 

Council [32UG] 

 

 
Page 3 of 3 

 
OFFICIAL  

provider has failed to meet a consumer standard. In order to use regulatory or 
enforcement powers, as well as the failure to meet the standard, there should also 
be reasonable grounds to suspect that the failure has resulted in a serious 
detriment to the provider’s tenants (or potential tenants) or that there is a 
significant risk that, if no action is taken by the regulator, the failure will result in a 
serious detriment to the provider’s tenants (or potential tenants).  
 
South Kesteven DC has put in place a programme to rectify these failures and the 
regulator will therefore not take statutory action at this stage, as it has assurance 
that the breach of the standard is being remedied. The regulator will work with the 
Council as it continues to address the issues which have led to this situation, 
including ongoing monitoring of how it delivers its programme.  

 
 

 
 
 
 

49



This page is intentionally left blank



Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2020/21 

WORK PROGRAMME 
Members – 7 

Remit link - REMIT 

Work Programme link :  April 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 
ORIGINATED/COMMITTEE 

HISTORY DATE(S) 
CORPORATE/ 

PRIORITY 

29 April 2021, 2:00pm 

Progress Report to 
Health and Safety 
Compliance 
including 
Improvement Plan 
progress and 
Regulator 
Interventions  

Report on progress since the 
presentation of the Health and 
Safety Compliance Report to the 
Committee on 12 November 2020 
and Regulator Intervention, 
including Improvement plan 
updates. 
Report author: Debbie Roberts, 
Corporate Project Officer (Chris 
Stratford) 

To ensure OSC is kept up to 
date with core progress on 
all matters relating to 
Compliance and Regulator 
activities. 

Council 
Housing that 
meets the 
needs of all 
residents/High 
performing 
Council 

Cabinet and OSC 
previous meetings and 
request for updates as 
required. 

Assisted Grass and 
Hedge Cutting 
Scheme 

To propose amendments to the 
criteria for tenants qualifying for the 
assisted garden scheme.  
Report author: Celia Bown 

To give feedback on the 
proposed amendments and 
make recommendations to 
Cabinet as necessary. 

Review of service as part 
of the revision of the 
overall review of the 
Grounds maintenance 
contract for HRA land.  

Healthy 
and strong 
communities 

Voids Policy and 
KPIs, Housing Tech 
Services Update 

Report to review proposals for 
revised voids standard developing 
KPI’s and Final Voids Policy.  
 
Report author: Paul Crow 
 

To ensure OSC is kept up to 
date with further service and 
policy adjustments including 
core performance 
monitoring. 

OSC report previously on 
Voids Performance.  

Housing that 
meets the 
needs of all 
residents 

51

A
genda Item

 12



 
 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 
ORIGINATED/COMMITTEE 

HISTORY DATE(S) 
CORPORATE/ 

PRIORITY 

Fire Safety 
Management Plan 
 

Report seeking recommendation to 
adopt a Fire Safety Management 
Plan to ensure compliance with 
statutory and regulatory fire safety 
requirements, in specific domestic 
properties and related communal 
areas. 
Report author: Paul Crow 

To review the proposed Fire 
Safety Management Plan, 
provide any feedback and 
recommend its adoption 

 
Healthy 
and strong 
communities 

Mobility Scooter 
Policy  

Many scooters are being stored 
and charged inside the schemes, 
or outside but near buildings, 
causing fire and health and safety 
risks.   
Report author: Celia Bown 

Recommends to Cabinet to 
approve the policy.  The 
policy is to manage the safe 
storage and charging of 
mobility scooters and 
ensure permission is sought 
by tenants and leaseholders 
to have a mobility scooter. 

New policy 
Healthy 
and strong 
communities 

Landlords Forum To be confirmed    

Dashboard Key 
Performance 
Indicators 

Update of Key Performance 
Indicators and targets to note 
progress against KPIs and feed 
back to Officers on any 
performance issues or successes, 
and to consider further items for 
the work programme 
Report author: Ken Lyon 

To consider which areas 
have poor or good 
performance, make 
recommendations for 
improvement or for 
continued success, and to 
feed back to Officers or 
make recommendations to 
Cabinet as necessary 

Developed from the 
SKDC Corporate Plan 
approved at Council on 1 
October 2020 

High performing 
council 

Quarterly figures 

 

 

52



 
 

UNSCHEDULED ITEMS 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 
ORIGINATED/COMMITTEE 

HISTORY DATE(S) 
CORPORATE/ 

PRIORITY 

CCG/ULHT – 
Pandemic lessons 
learnt and 
experiences 

 
Author: TBC 

 
Requested by Chairman 
 

Healthy 
and strong 
communities 

 

REMIT 
The remit of the Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to work alongside Cabinet Members to assist with the development of 
policy and to scrutinise decisions in respect of, but not limited to: 
 

• Anti-social Behaviour 

• Assisted Garden Maintenance Scheme 

• Benefit Claims 

• Community Cohesion 

• Community Funding & Volunteering 

• Community Right to Bid 

• Community Safety and Local Policing 

• Customer Services 

• DASH Landlord Accreditation Scheme 

• Disabled Facilities Grant 

• Empty Homes Assistance 

• Empty Homes Discount 

• Equalities and Diversity 

• Essential Home Repair Assistance 

• Gravitas Housing 

• Health 

• Homelessness 

• Housing Management, Improvement and Repairs 

• Housing Partnership 

• HR and Organisational Development 

• Landlords Forum 

• Parish and Town Council Liaison 

• Procurement 

• Safeguarding 

• Well-being 

53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

55

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

61

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Action Notes from the meeting held on 7 January 2021
	6 Updates from the previous meeting
	8 Safeguarding Review
	Appendix A Training and Development

	9 Modern Slavery Charter
	Appendix A - Modern Slavery Charter
	Appendix B - Response Document

	10 Mental Health Challenge - South Kesteven
	Appendix A Motion on Mental Wellbeing

	11 Regulatory Non-compliance Notice
	Appendix A - South Kesteven District Council Regulatory Notice

	12 Work Programme
	13 Rent Guarantee Scheme
	Appendix 1 - Help2Rent Presentation


